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Date: 01/18/19 
 

FBI 

Attn: Special Agent in Charge Harold H. Shaw 

201 Maple St 

Chelsea, MA 02150 

 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL  

        

RE:  REPORT OF POSSIBLE TERRORISM AND TERRORIST IN YOUR 

JURISDICTION ENGAGED BY CHRISTOPHER ANU  FOBENEH A.K.A. 

CHRIS ANU, AND REQUEST FOR AN INVESTIGATION. 

  Date of Incident: October 2016 to present. 

Dear Mr. Shaw: 

We present to you a matter involving U.S. national security, terrorism, and 

violent crimes. The United States is not a safe harbor for natives of foreign countries, 

such as the person reported CHRIS ANU, to engage in public leadership of armed 

terrorist groups, material support of terrorism, international terrorism, aiding and 

abetting in a long list of federal crimes, accessories to crimes before and after the 

fact, from his residence at 495 Hall St., Manchester, NH 03103 (within your 

jurisdictipn). The action and conduct of CHRIS ANU, from his residence at Hall 

street, Manchester, poses an existential threat to tens of thousands of US citizens of 

Cameroon origin, and US citizens generally. A terrorist harboring in our midst is a 

most dangerous proposition, and such a possible scenario must be investigated 

comprehensively.  

On information and belief, MR. CHRIS ANU is in violation of virtually all 

laws against international terrorism, violence, murder, kidnappings, arson, and other 

most vile criminal acts. Mr. Anu,  along with all those residing in the USA who act 
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in agency, joint venture, conspiracy, with him must be investigated and brought to 

justice. 

With the foregoing in mind, on behalf of certain victims, U.S. citizens and 

residents of Cameroon origin, whose parents, siblings, children have been killed, 

maimed, tortured, body parts cut with a machete, property burnt, and for others, their 

children prevented from going to school for the past two years, we hereby submit 

this request to have CHRIS ANU thoroughly investigated because he is, upon 

information and belief, committing multiple terrorism and other federal crimes from 

his residence at Hall St., Manchester, NH, listed below: 

A. VIOLATIONS 

On information and belief, Mr. Anu has committed the following violations, 

without limitation: 

1. “International terrorism,” according to 18 U.S.C. § 2331 is defined as 

“activities that involve acts or acts dangerous to human life that are in violation of 

the criminal laws of the United States or of any State, that would be a criminal 

violation if committed within the jurisdiction of the United States or of any State.”  

2. 18 U.S.C. §2(a) — Aiding, abetting, counseling, commanding, 

inducing or procuring a federal crime; 

3. 18 U.S.C. §371 — Conspiring to commit a federal crime; 

4. 18 U.S.C. §2332b — Conspiring to commit an act of terrorism; 

5. 18 U.S.C. §2339A - Providing material support to terrorists; 

6. 18 U.S.C. §2339C - Prohibitions against the financing of terrorism; 

7. CA Penal Code §31 — Accomplice liability – Aiding and Abetting 

Law; 

8. CA Penal Code §182 - Criminal Conspiracy ( to crimes of murder, 

kidnappings, arson, assault, battery, without limitation ) 

9. CA Penal Code §32 – Accessory after the fact ( to crimes of murder, 

kidnappings, arson, assault, battery, without limitation ) 

10. Other crimes, including accessory before the fact, murder, kidnapping, 

arson, robbery, assault and battery, and seeking the overthrow of a foreign 

government through the use of force and war in violation of 18 U.S.C. §2385. 

 

B. FACTS ESTABLISHING PROBABLE CAUSE 
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We have compiled a file comprising 344 social media and other publications 

from Mr. Anu evidencing his material support (as defined by the Supreme Court of 

the United States, “ material support” means providing “training”, “expert advice or 

assistance”, “service” or “personnel” to armed organizations ) of terrorism that 

harms parents, siblings, children and other families of US citizens of Cameroon 

origin. Mr. Chris Anu, as evidenced in these posts and videos, provides “expert 

advise” “service” “training” and “personnel” to the armed militias and groups on 

how to intimidate civilians into submission, carry out killings, terrorize innocent 

civilians in hotels and students, burn down houses of those who do not cooperate 

and other atrocities. The post and videos are indisputable evidence, with Mr. Chris 

Anu personally acknowledging his criminal actions and accomplishment, and giving 

direct orders to his armed fighters and followers to kill, torture, maim, and burn the 

property of any civilians that don’t subscribe to his political goals. Please contact 

our office for a copy of this evidence compiled against Mr. Anu.  

The brutal actions and atrocities committed by the armed terrorist groups led 

by Mr. Anu are well documented by credible news organizations such as the BBC, 

RFI, Reuters, Amnesty International.  

Additional specific material support of crimes, terrorism, and aiding and 

abetting in a long laundry list of federal crimes which, upon information and belief,  

are committed by Mr. Chris Anu include: 

1. Fund raising for the armed militia organizations whose official conduct 

and policies are all crimes under USA laws 

2. Using his facebook posts to provide instructions on strategy, policy, and 

armed militia regulations that have killed hundreds of civilians 

3. Recruiting of fighters who have killed hundreds of innocent civilians 

4. Assistance with procuring and providing weapons, equipment, and 

other tangible materials that kill innocent civilians 

5. Coordination with other separatists groups abroad and in Cameroon 

6. Leadership of the Ambazonia Interim Government which is a rogue 

government domiciled in the USA 

7. Expert advise and assistance on how to obtain separation by violence 

and force and war from Cameroon 

8. Assistance with the training of armed fighters 
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9. Using other social media such as email, twitter, skype, whatsapp to 

promote a violent agenda, plan the dates and times of attacks, and other 

activities in violation of USA laws. 

10. Intimidation, threats, and killings of anyone who opposes their goal of 

secession; and so on and forth. 

11. Formation of an illegal “government" called Ambazonia, with offices 

in the USA, and engaging in the collection of “taxes" for his 

government from within the continental USA, in violation of State 

Department laws and regulations, and USC codes on foreign 

governments activity and operational rights within the USA. 

In fact, on multiple occasions in September, October and November, 2018, 

Mr. Anu materially supported the commission of massacres against the U.N. 

personnel unless they provide “peace keeping forces.” On information and belief, 

his message constituted a material support and incitement which led to his armed 

militia killing American Charles Wesco, brother of Indiana State Representative 

Timothy Wesco, on October 30, 2018.  

In a Press release dated November 14, 2018, Mr. Anu declared any lawyers 

who participated in Cameroon Bar Association elections to have acted in “betrayal” 

and “treason” against his Government of Ambazonia. Consequently, several 

Cameroonian lawyers, including this writer, received death threats, while others 

were reportedly beaten by his armed militia.  

Critically, against all US laws on education for children, and in particular laws 

on compulsory education for kids, Mr. Anu and his government, through their 

material support of violence and terror and in publicly seeking to make Cameroon 

“ungovernable”, have prevented children in the North West and South West regions 

from going to school for over two years. Students that disobey have had their hands 

cut with knives, raped, or beaten to near death. In veiled threats to discourage parents 

from sending their children to school, Mr. Anu’s press release tells parents “your 

children go to school at your own risk.” 

On May 8th, 2018, Mr. Anu wrote a post indicating that all landlords should 

terminate the leases of “colonial administrators of French Cameroun.” In the last 

week of June 2018, as well as July through present, acting in furtherance of Mr. 
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Anu’s edict, and due to the material support provided by Mr. Anu, several family 

members whom I represent were killed, beaten, and their cars and property burnt. 

In a press release dated March 22, 2018, Mr. Anu instructed his armed 

supporters to threaten, intimidate, and terrorize “every wanna be Senators and 

Councilors who want to vote.” Due to this incitement, participation, and material 

support of violence and terror through this press release, innocent citizens who 

sought to vote during elections were killed, tortured, kidnapped, mutilated, and their 

properties burnt, including many of our clients. 

In an article entitled “Disagreeing to Agree”, dated March 12, 2018, attached 

as an exhibit, Mr. Anu declared “I have said that hit and run kidnappings are good 

strategies as far as the targets are certain institutions and very high profile individuals 

like SDOs and some of these recalcitrant politicians.” He goes on, “And you know 

where hit and run can be most effective too? Of course, LRCC territory and their 

economic interests.” Acting on this incitement, material support, and participation, 

Mr. Anu’s armed militia have now engaged in systematic kidnappings of individuals 

and politicians, as well as killings and attempted assassinations. The families we 

represent lost their husbands, wives, children, and property, due to his material 

support of his armed local militia, that execute his instructions spelled out in his 

press releases and writings. 

We have saved all the evidence of his aiding and abbeting/accessory to 

crimes before and after the fact, criminal conspiracy, in violent crimes and 

terrorism, including material support of terrorism, noted above, and will 

provide it to your office upon request.  

C. SUFFERINGS OF THOUSANDS OF US CITIZENS OF 

CAMEROON ORIGIN BECAUSE OF THE ACTIONS OF MR. 

CHRIS ANU AND ARMED MILITIA 

According to most reputable organizations such as Amnesty International, 

Human Rights Watch, or the International Crisis Groups, it is estimated as of 

December 2017 that the conflict in Cameroon – which we report as being directly 

caused, incited, participated, materially supported by the actions of Mr. Chris Anu 

and his armed militia groups, acting in a joint venture, aiding and abetting each other, 

acting in agency - has resulted in 500 civilians who have died in the violence, and 

the United Nations counts 30,000 Cameroon Anglophone refugees in Nigeria and 
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437,000 internally displaced in Cameroon. An incredible half a million 

Cameroonians are suffering a life of abject misery, poverty, and nastiness, away 

from their homes, due to the actions and conduct of Mr. Chris Anu, and his armed 

militia and related organizations. 

The United States citizens victims we represent, as well as thousands of US 

citizens of Cameroon origin residing in the USA, wake up each morning, checking 

their phones, their whatsapp messages, and fearing the worst, always likely to 

happen: families and friends kidnapped for ransom, silenced into submission with 

threats on their persons and lives, killings of family members, and other atrocities. 

Without the material support Mr. Chris Anu provides to the armed militia, and 

readily admits about it on his social media platform (see exhibits attached), resulting 

in the verifiable massacres noted and documented by reputable organizations such 

as Amnesty International, US citizens of Cameroon origin would not have this daily 

anguish, pain, and feeling terrorized and helpless. USA businesses have lost, 

reportedly, tens of millions of dollars invested because of Mr. Anu’s actions and 

material support of international terrorism. 

It is against this backdrop that we humbly request an investigation into the 

actions and conduct of Mr. Chris Anu ( full real name is: CHRIDTOPHER 

ANU FOBENEH) which we believe constitutes material support of terrorism, 

as well as a long laundry list of immigration and federal crimes, partially listed 

above, which he commits from his residence in Manchester, NH, and causing 

unimaginable pain to thousands of US citizens of Cameroon origin, as well as 

anguish and sufferings to millions of Cameroonians. 

We thank you in advance for your anticipated professional courtesy and 

cooperation.  

 

       Very truly yours, 

Nsahlai Law Firm 

 

 EmmanuelNsahlai 

By: _____________ 
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  Emmanuel Nsahlai 

  nsahlai.e@nsahlailawfirm.com 
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